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KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

BOARDY'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual report on the affairs of the Company together
with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended on 31+ March, 2023,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

o (Rsin))
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Profit/ Loss for the year before taxation (21606) 14420
Less: Provision for taxation
 Current Tax - 214
Deferred Tax = -
Earlier Years Tax 5 429
Profit/Loss for the year (21759) 11887
DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for this year to conserve the respurces for responding
to suitable opportunities in the future.

DEPOSITS
Your Company has not invited/ accepted any deposits from the public under Section 73 of the
Companies Act. 2013 and the Companies Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
There is no change in the nature of the business of the company during the Financial Year 2022-23.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITTMENTS

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statement relates and the date of this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS =
During the year under review, the loans / guarantees/ investments covered under the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the schedule during the year.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANY

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has one Holding Company, namely, Pratap Holdings Ltd. and one
Subsidiary Company, namely, Agaresh Finance & Properties Limited, the details of which are
mentioned in the schedule of the Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has in place adequate internal contrals with reference to financial statements. During the
vear under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operation was observed.



CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPIION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. The Company not being a manufacturer company, the Companies 8(3) {Accounts) Rules, 2014
regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology. Absorption are not applicable.

B. The total Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the vear ended 31+ March, 2023 was Nil.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

There has been change in the constitution of Board during the year under review.

Shri Rajeev Agarwal (holding DIN: 00337332) retire by rotation and being eligible seeks re-
appointment.

NUMBER OF MEETING OF THE BOARD
During the year 2022-23, the Board of Directors met Five times viz. on 30% May, 2022; 13 August,
2022; 14 November, 2022; 21 December, 2022 and 13" February, 2023.

CODE OF CONDUCT

In terms of requirement of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Company, it's Management Personnel and the Members of the Board have complied with the Code
of Conduct as laid down by the Board of Directors.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director of the Company
under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that the Independent Director of the Company meet
with the criteria of their Independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 ancl
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3)(c)of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

i) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March, 2023, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

if) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as fo give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit and loss of the company tor
that period;

iii) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

vi) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The Company has no employees within the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5 of the Companies (A ppointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,



FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

The Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors
individually as well as the evaluation of the working of all the Committees. Inputs were received from
the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board functioning such as adequacy of the composition
of the Board and its Committee, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties,
obligations and governance,

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of Individual Directors including the
Chairperson of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and
contribution, independence of jucigment, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority
shareholders, etc. the performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the
entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairperson and the Non-Independent Directors was
carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

LISTING WITH THE STOCK EXCHANGE
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed with the Calcutta Stock Exchange:

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in
future.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Company has a vigil mechanism policy to deal with instances of fraud & mismanagement, if any.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record Lheir sincere thanks to bankers, associates, consultants and various
Government Authorities for their continue support extended to your company activities during the
year under review. Your Director also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their support and
confidence reposed in your Company.,

Place; Kolkata For & On behalf of the Board of Directors
Dates 30-05-2023 Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited

o

AK. Goenka
DIN: 00312523
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KANORIA SRCURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Kanoria Securities &
Financial Services Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

f’l
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. We have
determined that there are no Key Audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

v
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management

eitherintends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

b
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢] The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalane
financial statements of the Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
our separate report in "Annexure B".

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2023 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements.
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b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses,

c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

» directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall;

» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding

Party or

» provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company and hence
compliance with Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.
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(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of
the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of
the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the
Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For and on behalf of

S.B.DANDEKER & CO.

Chartered Accountants -
Firm Regn No.301009E SOARERESS

= OLENTA .Ii.'”!
Kedarashish Bapat \eN A
Partner 5 A
M.Mo.- 057903

UDIN: 220S 3402 BGVEDM 7028

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2023
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“Annexure-A”

(i)

{ii)

(1)

In respect of its Property, Plant & Equipment:
(a) {A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative detalls and
situation of the Property, Plant & Equipment,

(B} The Company has no Intangible Assets,
(b} The Property, Plant & Equipment were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance
with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the Property,
Plant & Equipment at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of Property, Plant & Equipment as compared to book records.
(¢} The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company Is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed In favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the
name of the company.
{d] The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (Including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the year.
(8] Mo proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami property under
the “Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made there under.

(a) The company did not hold any inventory during the year.
{blThe Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, In aggregate, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any time during the year.

The company has not made any investments in or granted any secured loans or advances in the nature of loans to or
provided any guarantee or security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the
year. However it granted unsecured loans or advances in the nature of loans during the year: In respect of such
Loans:

{a)
Amounts given | Balance outstanding as on 31-03-
Unsecured Loans granted to during the year 20Z3 (Rs in Lakhs)
(Fs In Lakhs)
Holding Company, Subsidiaries and Associates 3.50 20.50
Other than Holding Company, Subsidiaries and Associates 3.75 1515

(b} In our opinion and in accordance with the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of
grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company’ s interest:

{e) in respect of such loans given, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and in such cases the repayments or receipts are regular;

(d} As explained to us no amounts of such loans are overdue for more than ninety days as on the balance sheet date.

{e} No such unsecured loan which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same parties,

{f} The company has not granted any unsecured loans repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment,
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In respect of loans granted, Investments made, guarantees and security provided by the company during the year as
applicable, the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have bean complied with.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit deemed to he
deposits during the year and therefore directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under in this regard
are not applicable.

As explained to us the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records for the Company under
subsection {1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Atcording to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

(a). The Company has generally been regular in depasiting undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service
Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriste authorities. We are informed that the
Company’s operations did not give rise to any dues on account of Excise duty.

{b). There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Income
tax, Service tax, Customs duty, Value added tax, Sales tax, Goods & Services Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. We
are informed that the Company's operations did not give rise to any dues on account of Excise duty.

There were no such transactions which were not recorded in the books of account of the company that have baen
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1981,

(2} The company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or other borrowings from any lender and hence sub
clauses (a) clause (ix} of the Order is not applicable.

(b)The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender

{c) The lnans were entirely applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained

{d) The funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes or vice versa,

(a) The company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt
instruments) during the year.

(b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year

{a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reportad during the
year,

{b) No report under sub-Section {12} of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors during the
year

© There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the Company, to be considered by the
auditors.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (i) of the CARO 2020 Order Is mot
applicable,

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Staterments etc as required by the applicable
accounting standards.
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(i) a} The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of Its business,

(b) The reports of tha Internal Audit for the period wunder audit have been considered by us in the process of aur
audit of the financial statements,

(£ In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not
entered into any nen-cash transactions with fts directors or directors of its holding ar persons connected with them
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act. 2013 are not applicable;

vl The company Is a Non Banking Financial Institution under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
and has obtained necessary registration from the Reserve Bank of India.
(b) The company has not conducted any. Mon-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid
Certificate of Reglstration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934:
lc) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) a5 defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India
(d) The Company does not have mare than one CIC as part of the Company.

{xvii}  The Company has incurred cash losses in the Financial Year whereas there was profit in the immediately preceding
Financial year.

(xviil}  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. However, the term of appointment of the
outgoing statutory auditor expired at the conclusion of the last Annual General meeting.

{xic} On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial llabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements of the company, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinfon that no material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the company is capable of meeting Its fiabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a periad of one year from the balance sheet date.

[xx) Provisions of section 135 relating to Corporate Social Respa nsibility are not applicable to the company.

For and on behalf of
S.B.DANDEKER & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.301009

- ( -
Kedarashish Bapat
Partner
M.No-- 057903

UDIN: 23eSTHR By EDMTOLS

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2023
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“Annexure-B"
KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

ial Contr i
i ) i “the Act"

for the year ended 31" March, 2023

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KANORIA SECURITIES &
FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone IND AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control aver financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
compaonents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respacts.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the paolicies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For and on behalf of
S.B.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.301009E

Kedarashish Bapat

Partner
M.No.- 057903

UDIN: 22053903 BRA&VED e e 8

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30™ May, 2023
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ADDITIONAL AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors,

Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited
8, B. B. D Bag (East),

Kolkata — 700001

We have audited the Balance Sheet of M/s Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited as at 31% March
2023 and the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, Based on
such audit and as required by the “Non-Banking Finance Companies Auditor’s Report {Reserve Bank)
Directions 2016" issued by the Reserve Bank of India in exercise of powers conferred by section 45MA(14) of
the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934, we report that:-

A (1)

(2)

The company has obtained valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) under Section 45IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

The company is entitled to continue to hold the CoR in terms of its principal business criteria (I.e.
financial assets/ income pattern) as on 31*' March 2023.

(3) The Company meets the required minimum Net Owned Funds requirement as on 31" March
2023 for its prescribed class of NBFCs.

B. (1) The Board of Directors has passed a resolution for non acceptance of public deposits

(2) The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year ended 31* March
2023,

(3) The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition,
accounting standards, assets classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts, as
specified in the systematically important company directions.

For and on behalf of
5.B.DANDEKER & CO,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.301009E

—_—

o

Kedarashish Bapat

Partner

M.MNo.- 057903

UDIN: 230 FA0B OV EDNTST

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2023



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Srindalone Balance Sheet us ot 31st March, 2073

(T 1n hisncireds)
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 47796 54,873
Bank Balsnce ocher than [a) above 5 4,431 4406
Receivibles
-Trade Receivables L] . 20,108
-Chther Receivables 430
Loumig T el 1454 058
Investments in Subsidisries ] 261000 261,000
trvestmens nthes Lthat in Subsidiaries 9 WAL A4 382,55
(ther Financial Assets 10 91,024 116,425
Total Financial Assets 166720 2363515
Mo Financial Assets
[Property, Piant and Equipment 11 19471 18,271
Dieffered Tax Asset 7716 -
Toral Non Finanelal Assets 26987 19271
Total Assets 1.694,209 2,383,185
LIARILITIES AND EQUITY
LIARILITIES
Finsncial Liabilities
Payabies
MTrmde Payabiles
i) Total cugwtsnding dues of micro enterprises and otheer smalt
enzeTprises
i) Totul owistanding dues of creditors other than mici
enterprises and ocher small enterprises
Crher Payables
1) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and other sl
nrErpeises i -
i} Total ourstanding dues: of credivors other than micro
enterprises atd orher small enterpriscs 10,571 12,436
Preference Shares iz 370,000 IT0.000
Barrowings 13 1 66,333 1.556,658
[Other Financiel Liabilities 14 71,808 166.334
Total Financial Lisbilities 1,518,612 2,107 428
tion Financial Liabilithes
Dieferred Tax Liabilicy - 1,240
Loig Term Provisions 15 10,4615 10615
Tatal Mon Financial Liahilities 1051% 11459
Totwl Lishilities 1528.81 L 119287
Equiry
i} Equity Share Caphtal i6 $0B.000 408, D0
() e Equity 17 (243,020 [144,1011
Total Equity 164,978 263,855
Total Equity and Liabilitics 1,694,209 2,383,186 |
PARTICLILARS AS PER NEFC DIRECTION ANNEXED
A per oar Repar of evan dae.
For S B, DANDEKER & £0. e For and on behall of the Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS o0 e
FoRN: 3010091 o
e
Goenks
Whiole Time Directo
PARTNER : P 00312823
Membership No. 05790 -
(g ) ;.A—E'-L-‘-*--mﬂsdu
Place ; Kolkats AL I W slwikear
Thated: 30th May, 2023 Compiny Secretary

w2 20S P03 PEVEDMT02.8



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(" in hundreds)
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 18 71.484 85,846
Dividend [ncome 12923 3373
Other Operating Income 19 (3.696) 4,552
1 [Total Revenue from operations 80,711 03,771
m [Other Income 20 7.079 26,107
'Tu_rl'fﬂﬂl Income (T+1T) 87,790 119,878
IV |EXPENSES:
Finance Costs 21 105796 102,363
Employee Benefits Expense - -
Other Expenses 22 3,600 3,095
[ Total Expenses (IV) 109,396 105,458
Vv |PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (II-TV) (21,606)| 14,420
vl |TAX EXPENSES
|Carrent Tax - 2,104
Earlier Years Tax 153 429
Deferred Tax g _
VII |PROFIT/(LOSS FOR THE YEAR [V-VI (21,759 11,887
VIl |OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (86,118) 11,921
(ii) Income taxes on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (8.956) 1.240
B. (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss -
(ii) Income taxes on items that will be reclassified to profit or foss -
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (NET OF TAXES) (77.162) 10,681
IX |Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (VII + VIII) (98.921) 22,568
Earnings per Equity Share [Nominal Value of Share - Rs. 10]
Basic & Diluted 23 (0.53) 0.29
Significant accounting policies
PARTICULARS AS PER NEFC DIRECTION ANNEXED
As per our Report of even date,
For 5. B. DANDEKER & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
F.R.N: 301009E
=t " =, Raj A K Goenka
Trector Whole Time Direct:
{KEDARASHI;H BAPAT) DIN: 00337332 DIN: 00312823
PARTNER

Membership No. 057903 =
LTS RIS
Place : kolkata Ajit P. Walwaikar
Dared: 30th May, 2023 Company Secretary
Uit 2% 0SAG R BLVED M 7028



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 315t March, 2023

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

{% in hundreds)

Net Profit/{Loss) before tax & extra ordinary items:

(21,606)

14,420

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Cecurities Transaction Tax

BES

00

Dividend Income

{12.923)

(3.373)

Profit on Sale of Investmenis

1,561

{10,477}

{17,155}

{19.628)

Operaring Profit before working capital changes

(32,083)

(5,208}

Ad justments for:

{Increase)/Decrease in Investments on Fair Value threugh
Profit and Loss Account

3696

(4552)

{Increase)/Decrease (n Borrowings

(450.435)

582,491

{Incredse)/Decrease in Other Bank Balances

(225)

(465)

{Increase)/Decrease in Other Payables

(L BE5)

(10.5486)

{Increase)/Decrease in Other Receivables

450

738

{ImcreaselDecreass in Loans Given

1.132,651

(668,451}

(Imcrease)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets

3.604

12,695

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables

80,108

(80,108)

{Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Liabilities

{96.526)

(211,274)

631 468

(379,472)

Cash generated from operations

599,385

(384,680}

Dvirect Taxes Paid

21,543

18,794

Met Cash From cperating sctivities (A)

621,228

(363,886)

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

Securities Transaction Tax

(883}

(500}

Dividend Income

12,923

3,373

Profit on Sale of Investments

[1361])

17,155

Sale/[Purchase) of lnvesrments

(638&782)

(169 440)

{5t Cash inflow from Investing Activities (B)

(628,305)

(149,812)

. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Interest paid on short term borrowings

Met Cash from Financing Activities (C}

et Increase/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C)

(7.077)

(515,698)

[Cash & cash equivalents as st lst April, 2022

570,571

Cash & cash equivalents as at 31st March, 2023

47,796

54,873

NOTE : FIGURES IN BRACKET REPRESENT OUTFLOW

PARTICULARS AS PER NEFC DIRECTION ANNEXED

As per our Report of even date.
For §, B. DANDEKER & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FR.N: 301009E

(KEDARASHISH BABAT)
PARTNER
Membership No. 057903

Place : Kolkata
Diated: 30th May, 2023
wn: L 30S F903 BENEDN T ks

BIN: 00337332

Company Secretary

)

For and an behalf of the Board

A

Ajit P, Walwaikar

nka

L

Whole Time Dinecrar
DIN: 00312823

— - § s
a,_L_hrL-LLL

-



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equiry for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Current Reporting Period {% in hundreds)
Chamges in Eq Restated halance |Changes in equity| Balance at the
Share Capital due| at the beginning |  share capital end of the
to prior period | of the current during the current
ﬂBaI:nne at the beginning of the current errors reporting period | current year reporting
reporting period period
408,000 : 408,000 - 408,000
Previous Reporting Period T in hundreds)
Changes In Equity| Restated balance [ Changes in equity| Balance at the |
$hare Capital due] atthe beginning |  share capital end of the
to prior peried | of the previous during the previous
Balance at the beginning of the erTors reporting period | previous year reporting
previous reporting period period
408,000 # 408,000 408,000
B. Other Equity

Current Reporting Period

lat Apﬂ. 1022 ! 9,004

{T in hundreds)

{193,786) 10,681

{144,101)

Changes in accounting policy of price
period errors : = .
HRestated balance at the beginning of the
current reporting pesiod 39,004 {193.786) 10,681 {144,101
Profiv/Loss for the year - (2 .?W]r = (21,759

her Comprehensive Income - - (77163 (T A62)
Total Comprehensive Income 39,004 (215,545) (&66,481) (243,027}
Transfer to Sratutory Reserve = -
Balance as at 31st Mazch, 2023 39,004 IZIEJE]J (56,481) {245,002

Previcus Reporing Period (¥ in hundreds)

Restated balance at the beginning of che

previous reporting period 36727 {203,396 - {166,669
Profit/Loss for the year - 11,887 - 11,887
Orher Comprehensive [noome - . = -
Total Comprehensive [ncome 36,727 {191,509} 10,681 {144,10L)
Transfer 1o Statatory Reserve 277 (2277 & ]
Balance as st 316t March,2022 39,004 (193,786)] 10,681 (144,101)

(166,669)

* 2086 of the Profits for the Financial Year 2022-23 mransferred to Stararory Heserve 85 required by Law.
PARTICULARS AS PER NBFC DIRECTION ANNEXED
As per our Report of even date.

For 5. B. DANDEKER & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

For and on behalf of che Baard

@ 2

FR.N: 301009E cp
e
K ‘E} .
(KEDARASHISH BAPAT) i Dieector Whole Time Director

A K Goenka
PARTNER DIIN: (0337332 DIN.DOZ12B23
Membership Mo. 057903 Y
o= 'I'E' £ "-““J'-"_u--
Place : Kolkata ¥ Ajin P Walwaikar
Daved: 30th May, 2023 Company Secreary

e 1208 F4E3 BEVEDMT LS
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KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

1 Company Overview

Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited (" The Company ) is a Non Banking Financial Company having its
Registered office at 8, B.B.D Bagh East Kolkara 700001 The company was incorporated on 30th August 1916. The
company's shares are listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limmited (CSE),

2 Basis of Preparation

a) Statement of Compliance

These Finanéial Statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) (to the
extent notified) and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133
af the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and adoptions was carried our in accordance with Ind AS 101- First
time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles
generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (IGAAP) which was the previous GAAP with 1st April, 2018 as the transistion date.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where 2 newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted
or a revision to an existing standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

b) Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is Company’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is also Indian Rupees.

¢) Basis of measurement

The Enancial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for certain
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
{ransaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In determining the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characrenstics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

d) Use of Judgments and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

&iﬁcﬂmmﬁngiudgmmﬂmdmmmduﬁmﬁmmmﬂnw:hy assumptions —

(i) Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using certain valuation techniques. The inputs to these
models ave taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility.




(ii) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:
The certain key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources. Provision is towards known
contractual obligation, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of raxes, duties and other levies, if any, in

respect of which management believes that there are present ohligations and the sertlement of such obligations are
expected to result in outflow of resources, to the extent provided for.

) Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities, The Company has an established control framework with respect to the
measurement of fair values. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techmniques as follows:

- Lewel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

_ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are oheervable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not basad on ohservable market data (uncbservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liabiliry fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.

3 Significant Accounting Policies

A) Operating Cycle
All assets and liahilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company'’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Sratements

based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalemts.

B) Financial Instruments

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lability or equity
instrument of another entity.

i, Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable o the acquisition of the financial asset, Trade receivables

are initially measured at transaction price. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade
date.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in threa categories:

» Amortised cost

« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

« Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.




Financial assets at amortised cost

A Financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is ta hold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows tha are solely payments of principal and interest on the pri ncipal amount putstanding. The effective interest rate
(EIR) amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at FYTOCI

A financial asset is measurad at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whase objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows thar are solely paymenis of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income {QCI).

Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Statement of Profir & Loss.

Investment in Subsidiary
The Company has accounted for its investrents in its subsidiary at cost/deemed cost.

Other equity investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,
except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other
Comprehensive Income’. However, in limited circumstances, cost may be appropriate estimate of fair value. That may be
the case if insufficient recent information is available to measure fair value, or if there is wide range of possible fair value
measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.

ii. Financial Hability

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are atrriburable o the acquisition
of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are intially measured at fair
value.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are ¢lassified in following caregories:
- Financial liabilities through profit or loss (FVTPL)
« Financial liabilities ar amortised cost



Financial liahilities through FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is & derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Orher financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in profit or loss.

Inrerest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheert date, the carrying amounts
approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms shall be
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) shall be accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liabiliry.

The differerice between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial Hability) exringuished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets rransferred or liabilities assumed,
shall be recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only

when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

C) Impairment

Impairment of financial instruments : financial assets

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets
in TVTPL category,

For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recogrises 12 menth expected credit
losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not
increased significantly since its initial recognirion. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. The Company's trade
receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an
amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortall

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement af Profit and Loss.




Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporring date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. For impairment testing, assefs that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs), Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs, If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of
an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not paossible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value
in wse is based on the estimated furure cash. flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
ceflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific 1o the assets.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

D) Provisions {other than for employee benefits)

Prowvisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligarion and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisiens are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

E) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or
durties collected on behalf of the government.

F) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective inrerest method.

) Income tax

[ncome tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in
OCl,

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recowered from or paid vo the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted ar the Balance sheet date.
Dieferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the

liability is settled or the asser realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period.




H) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares,

1) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition o deemed cost on the date of transition less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost of an asset comprises of cost of acquisition or constructon
and includes, where applicable, inward freight, duties and taxes, installation expenses, professional fees, borrowing
costs, initial estimates of the cost of dismantling, cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment’s and other
costs directly attributable 1o the bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the intended manner and purposes. Capital Spare parts which are integral part of the plant and equipment
are capitalised. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the same are
capitalised and old component is derecognised.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
iterns (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the
carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

Depreciation on PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation has been provided as
per the useful life specified under Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Standaione Financisl Smapements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(T in hundreds

]

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash in hand E

Falances with BAnks - in CUTTENC ACCOUNRIE 47,706 54.E73
47,796 54,873

Other Bank Balances

(% in homdreds

4]

In Fixed Deposits (with marurity of more than 3
|m-:rnrha and upro 12 months)

4£.631

4406

4,631

4,406

Trade Receivables

% .in hundreds

Trane Mecervables considered good- secured

Tade Fecelvables consmered good- unsecured

80,108

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in
credit risk

rade Receivabies - credit impaired

|Gross

80,108

trade receivables

Teas Allowances for impairment boss on credit impaired

MNet

80,108

Trade Recaivables Ageing
A 3se March 2023

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than & & months to | 1-2 years | -3 years |More than | Total
maonths 1 year 1 years
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered pood - -
[ii] Undlsputed Trade receivables - which have - -
significant Increase in credit risk
{iii}) Undlisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - = -
[iv] Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - -
[v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have - - 5
sipnificant increase in éreditrisk
[vi] Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired . = - =
As ar 3st March 2022
r!'nrﬂ:ul:rs Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Less than & & months to | 1-2 years | 2-3 years |More than | Tetal
months 1 year 3 years
(1) Undisputed Tracle receivables - considered good B0,108 - - 80,108
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have = . - - -
significant increase in creditrisk
(iif} Undisputed Tradde receivables - credit impalred = .
(I¥] Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - -
{w) Disputed Trade receivables - which hawe - - -
significant increase in credit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit im paired - -
(T in hundreds)
Loans
- Related Pamy 20,504 15871
- Others 310,943 1,448 227
331,447 1,464,098




EANORIA SECURITIES & FINAMCLAL SERVICES LIMTTED
Motes on Standalone Financial Sistements for the year ended 3l March, 2023

(% in hundrods}

garesh Finance & Properites Led
Exquiny-5,00,000 shates of Ks [0 each (M2

50,000 KD
500,000 shares) s
1084 Non- Cumslstive Redeemable Preferente ZLLO00 211000
Shanes
261,000 261,000

1T in hundpeds)

In fully paid up Equity Shares
#ﬁm Holding Ltd 400,000 40,200 400,000 40200
Pradyumna Finance & Properties Lad 125 000 12550 125,000 12,559
Supertech Addivives Lid 125,000 12550 125,000 12,559
amaresh Investments Lud 85,000 Q905 85,000 9.915
New Indis Shipping Lines Ltd 38,000 4,560 38,000 4,560
Asarco Iovestments & Trading Co. Py Lid 20,000 12088 20,000 1200
Anchor Leasing Lid 62,000 7008 2000 7 008
BR.OTE 85,011
I fully paid up Non - Cumulative
| Bedeemable Preference Shares
Pradyumna Finance & Properties Ltd {10%
:\‘mnﬁmﬂnme Fludaenﬁ;]'c Preference 54,600 ey Sagon L
Supertech Addizives Lid (7.5% Non-
Cumulstive Redeemable Preference Shares) 50,000 30,250 500,000 50,250
103,577 103,577
At Frir Value through Other Comprehensive
| foeome
Fuily Faid Equiry Shares-Cioted
Chenplast Sanmar Lad 7700 26,765 7700 51217
DT Limdted 20,000 15720 20,000 12,350
Indizballs Reat Estares Lid 5,000 2445 5,000 5.052
Incia Geid Trust 50,800 138028 - E
Poonmwalls Fincorp Ld 8200 13985 B200 22173
Powergrid Infrastructure Investment Trust 222,84 73016 =
Seeel Authority of India Ltd 20,0063 16,540 30,000 19710
Tata Motors Led 5000 21.040 5000 21,687
Vedenta Limited 000 16,447 6,000 24,201
734,026 156,390
Murual Funds
ROPC Ulrs Shory Term Fund: Regular Plan
{Growth : - 13, 386 24971
- 24,971
At Falr Value through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL)
Fually Pald Equity Shares-Cuoted
Arvind Polyrot Ltd 2,000 147 2,000 147
Banswars Symthetics Lid 4,050 4. 908 4050 B007
Gremach CHE Lid 4000 E32 A 00 152
|Rajratan Symithetics Ld 5,000 a0 9,000 o
Tru, aH 1. Lud 2,000 15 2,000 15
5310 4,006
531,324 382,355




KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

(% in hundreds)

10 |Other financial assets
Balances with Govt Authorities 2,881 2,672
Advances 26,661 29712
Income Tax Payments (MNet of
Provisions) (2,092) 19.905
Interest Receivable 63,573 Gl 336
91,024 116,625

(¥ in hvondreds)

Property Plant and Equipment
{A) Gross Carrying Value

As at 1st April, 2021 256,657 340 91
Additions s = . -
Disposals / deductions - - . =
As at 31st March 2022 256,657 340 |
Additions - - - =
Disposals / deductions - - - .
As at 31st March 2023 256,657 340 91
(B) Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1st April 2021 237,399 332 B6
Charge for the year - - - -
Deductions - - - -
Asat 31st March 2022 237 399 33z B6
Charge for the year = - E -
Deductions - - . -
As at 31st March 2023 237,399 a2 Bo 237.817
(C) Net Block (A-B)
As at 1st April 2021
As at 31st March 2022
As at 315t March 2023

19,258
19,258
19,258

19,271
19,271
19,271

o
wn

Note a: The company considers 5% of the asset value as residual value and does not provide depreciation on such assets which
have been depreciated to the extent of 95 per cent of the acquisition cost.

The lease period of the fixed assets of the Company on lease has expired and these assets are in the possession of the lessee but are
carried in the books pending final sertlement of disputes and recovery of lease dues from them. In view of the status of the Company's
leased assets, no depreciation is charged on the same.

12 [7.5% Non Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs 100 each

370,000 370,000
370,000 370,000

3.70,000 7.5% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 100 each are redeemable before the expiry of a
period of ten years from the date of allotment i.e. 18th March, 2002, subject ro the option of the Company 10 redeem
the same at any time after three years from the date of allotment either in whole or in pars by giving three months
notice. The Preference shares are pending for redemption in accordance with section 55 of the Companies Act. 2013,




(T 1n hundredi)
g -

Uinsecured Loans from Rebted Pamies

75,024 B46,590

Tmsecuted Loans from Others

wNR TI0,065

1,066,233 | 1556658

Other Pinancial Liabilicies

[nteren Payable 2400 18,926
[Securiry Deposits 16850 1&R60
(nher Liahilities 22548 22548

71,808 168334

Provisians
Provision for Noa Performing Lossed Assets 10,619 0619
10,519 10419
T In haandeeds)
16 |Share Capital
Authorised

2 BOUO0L000 (A5t March 2022 ; 250,00,000H Equity Shares
of Rs 10 cach

2500000 2,500,000

OO0 (315t March 2022 - 10,00,000) 7.5% MNan
(Cumulssive Redesmmble Proference Shares of Rs 100 each

100, 00K 100000

3,500,000 | 3,500,000

Issued Subscribed and Pully Paid up

401,80,000 (315 March 20027 ; 40,80,000) Equiry Shares of Ba
10 each imeed ouhwerwise than in cash

16a) 39,590,000 Equity shares weze alloted & fully paid-up by way of Bonus Shares by capitalisation of Reserved.

16k} Reconcilistion of shares ourtstanding at the beginning and st the end of the reporaag period

41 the haginning af the period

4,080,000 408,000

48,000

4,080,000 406,000

Chapstanading at the ¢nd of the perind

4,00, 00 406,000

4.080,000] 408,000

16c) Terma/rights artached vo equity shares

The Company ha only ene class of equity shates having a par va

Pratap Holdings Led [Halding Company)

mﬁmﬂtﬁnuinm:nmf

3.524:151

lue af * 10 per share, Eacly halder of equity shiares is entitbed 1o one voue per

3,524,151

16e) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promaters

Disclosure of sharebalding of promoters 28 a March 31, 2023 is as follaws

1] Pratap Holdings Ltd {Holding Company]

% Change
Shares held by the promater at the end of the year duting the
Year
of Total
S.mo leﬂnl!r Kame No. of Shares ‘:;ms
1| Pratap Holdings Lud (Holding Company] 3,524151 | B35 ] ML
Trisclosre af shareholding of promouers a5 a March 31, 20072 & as follows
% Change
Shares held by the promoter at the end of the year during the
YEar
95 af Total
Sno  |Promoter Name Ko, of Shares (o oo
1,524.151 B6.38%] K



KANORIA SECURITTIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{% in hundreds)
17|Other Equity
Components
Stanutory Reserve 39,004 39,004 36,727 2,277 39,004
Retained Earnings (193,786) (21,759) (215.545) (203,396) 9,610 (193,786)
Comprehensive
Income 10,681 (77,162) (66,481) - 10,681 10,681
(144,101) (98,921)) (243,022 (166,669) 22568]  (144,101)
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KANORLA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED .
Notes on Standalone Financial Swtements for the year ended 315t March, 2023 I

(# in hundreds)
L8 Income
Tncome from fnancing activiry 71484 B5.846
T1.484 85,845
T in hundreds)
19 |Other Operating Income
Profit/| Loss) [rom capital markel operations {3,696) 4552
(3.696)) 4,552
"
(T in hundreds)
20 |Other Income
Other Interest 2301 1,630 I
Profivi{Loss) on Sale of Shares [2:859) 17,155 I
Profiv{Loss) on Sale of Murual Fund (Debr Fand) 1298 1,263
Profit/{Loss} on Specularion of Shares - {1,509)
Profit/(Less} an Dertvatives 6,204 7 568 1
Treasury Income 45 -
7.079 26,107

(¥ in hundreds)

Finance Costs
Interest Paid on Loan 105,796 1 3563
105.796 102363

‘12

Paymen: to Auditors

- i faes 3 38

- Other Taxatiom and certification mamters 72 92

Advertisement Expenses 78 7

Legal & Professional Charges LI77 B35

Filing Fees 46 59

Profession Tax 5 5

Membership & Subscription 757 502
Direciors Sicting Fees 200 180 L )

Securities Transaction Tax 885 900

Miscellaneous Expenses o] 187

3,500 3,095

(¥ in hundreds)

23 |Earmings Per Share

'Weighted average number of Equity Shares
ouststanding during the year 4,080,000 4,080,000
Mumber of Shares considered as weighted average
|<hares and potential shares ourstanding for

calcubation of Diluted Earnings Per Share 4,080,000 4,080,000
Profit after Tax artribuzble to Equiry Shareholders {21.759) 11,887
Tominal Value of Ordinary Shares 10 1
Earnings Per Share (Basic) [LRE)] 0.29
Exrnings Per Share (Diluted) 0.53) .29




KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes en Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

-

24. Operating Segments

An operating segment is & componens of the Compary that engages in business sctivties from which it may earn revenus and incur expenses, including
rovenues and expenses that relate to wansactions with any of the Company’ s other companerts. and foe which discrete financial informarion ls svailable. All
operating segments’ operating result. are reviewed regularly by the Company’s mansgement 16 imuke decisions sbour rescurces v be allocated vo the segments
and assess their performance.

The Company has only one repartable segment e Mo Banking Financial Company snd hence [ND A5 108 Operating Segments not spplicable to the company.

5. Related Party Disclosure
i}mummmmmmw“dmmmmmm
Enterprise an which the Company has control

Holding Coempany Limibred India

{1} Mame of the other related parties with whom transactions haven taken during the year

a) Key Managerial Persona

1. Gl Bajeev Agarwal DHrector

2. 5hri Anil Kamar Goenks Whale Time Director & Chisf Financial Officer
3, Shrt Beswaranjan Chakraborty Direcior

4, 5mt. Vandana Kanoria Director

& Shri Rohit Kumar Pandey Director

6. Shri Sagar Shaw Directos

b) Relative of Key Managerial Person

1, Shri Ajay Kumar Kanoria

2. Shri Pranav Kanaoria

3. Smt Urvi Sheth

£} Entexprise over which Key Managerial Person is having significant influence
1. Ajay Fumar Kanaris (HUF)

2. Ajay Kancria Family Trust

3. Tanna Electro Mechanies Pve Led



1, Transactions with Relied Parties

a. With Subsidiary and Holding Company

(% in hundreds)
Agaresh Financs & Properies Lsd |31.0372023 5.268 250 46 5.Eb4
(A Subsidiary Company) 3102022 4,630 50 384 5268
Pratap Holdings Lad 31/03/2003 10,603 3,250 787 1 4,640
{A Halding Company) | 11.,03/2022 6,704 3250 649 10,503
) Related Party Transaction taken place during the year:-
i Loan taken & Repayment therect
Tanna Elecrre Mechanics Pyt Lrd |31/03/2023 11,604 88,000 4,069 58,069 45,604
310372022 [7.158) 63,000 {1594} 44,044 11604
[imt Vindana Kanoria 31033113 534,500 1.198.000 9,745 1,742,145 -
310082022 185,506 745,000 213.04% 419,055 534,500
Shri Ajay Bumar Kanoeria 31/03/2023 110,000 . 7,353 117,353 .
1/082012 9,907 110,000 3.637 13.544 110,000
15kl Pranarr Kanarda 31,002023 50,000 55 50,055 -
31032022 47,76 51,000 478 49,242 50,000
Smt Urvi Sheth 31032023 . 2 £ =
31032022 4,563 50 4,713 -
Ajay Kumar Kanora [HUF) 310372023 111,069 - 74315 118,454 -
310872022 112293 118,000 5.033 121,263 111,069
Ajav Kanoris Family Trust 310202 29,420 - 2354 2354 29,420
1032022 3431 30,420 389 4,630 19410
ii, Other Transactions:
(T in hundreds)
Directors' Sisting Fees
1. Shri Rajeev Agarwal 40 40
2. Shri Amil Kumar Goenka 40 40
3, Shri Biswnranjan Chakraberty 40 40
4. Smi Vandana Kanoria = 0
5. Shri Rohit Kumar Pandey 40 40
&, Shii Harindra Sivigh Sirohi - 40
7. Shri Sagar Shaw 40




H.mdwmﬂsﬁthmnwmﬁmwmw;ummwdmuﬁﬁhff.h-e

After | Year

| Agaresh finance B Properties Lid

Prarap Holdings Led 14,640 | Business purpose | After 1 Year
Willlamson. Magor & Co Lad 240,000 |Business purpose  [Within 1 Year
Anil Limited 50,197 | Business purpase | Within 1 Year
Capricelo Trading Pvr Lid 5,595 |Business pupose IWichin | Year
Tirupati Screen Printing Co Led 14,131 |Busdness purpose  JAfres 1 Year
$ay-sec Brokerage House [ndlis Ltd 1020 |Business purpose 1 Yeur

27 Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

27.1 Fais values vs carrying amounts

Th:ﬁhvﬂuuﬂﬂmﬂdmmdﬂ:hﬁdﬂ.mhﬂﬂh&.mﬂumﬂuhwuh

Companies Act 2013 se on 31st March, 2023

the statement of fnancial position of ¥1st March, 2023 are s

followa:
(% in hundreds)
Cash and cash equivalents 47,796 - 47,796 47,796
Bank Balance other than (1) sbove 4531 4631 4531
Receivables i
-Trade Receivables = =
-Otcher Receivables = = - = -
Loans 331 447 - 331,447 331 447
Investnents in Subsidiacies 261,000 = - 265,000 261,000
Tnvestme nts other than in Subsidleries 191,988 5,037 808,222 1005247 931,314
Ochver Financial Assets 91,024 . - 0,914 91,024
527,886 5.037 - BB, 222 1,741,085 | 1667222
Borrowimgs 1066233 - - 1.066 233 1,066,233
{Crher Payabies 10571 - - 10,571 10571
Preference Shares 370,000 - - 370,000 310,000
[Cther fimancial liabilities 71808 - 71,808 71.2808
1.518,512 - = 1518612 1518612

The fair values of financial assets and labilities, together with the

mﬁqmmmmmﬂmdwpmuuummm are a8

follows:

% in hundreds)
(Cash and cash equivalents 54,873 | - - 54873 54873
| Bank Batance other than {a} above 4,406 4,406 L4406

Receivables = - .
-Trade Receivables 80.108 80,108 BO, 108
Oither Receivables 450 450 450
Loans 1,454,098 1,464,098 1464098
Investments in Subsidiaries 261,000 261.000 261,000
Investrnents other than in Subsidiaries 191 968 5.037 165,440 366,465 32355
Other Financial Assets 116,635 - - 116,623 116,625
2,173,548 5,087 - 165,440 2348025 | 2353515
Borrowings 1,556,558 - - 1,556,658 1556658
Other Payables 12,436 - - 12,436 12436
Preference Shares 0,000 - - 370,000 70,000
[Hher fnancial labilities 166,334 = 168,234 168,334
2,107 428 - 2,107,428 | 2,107,428




27.2 Fair Value Megnirement

The fair values of the fnancial assets and liabilines are ineloded at the amount st which the insorument could be exchange i B CurTent (rENsaction berween
willing parties, other than in forced or lbquidation sale,

The Company has established the following fair valus hierarchy that categories the value mio 3 levels. The mpm'r:u valuation rechniques wied to measure fair
wvalne of financial instruments aze:

Level 1= The hisrarchy uses quoted [asjusted) prices in active couarkeots for {dentical assets or liabilities. The fair value of all bonds which are traded in the stock
exchanges Is valued using the closing price ar dealer quatations s at the reporting dave.

Leval T: The fakr value of Brancial instruments that are not traded in an sctive market (for example wraded bonds, oves the counter derivagives) is determimed
using valuation technigues which maxiemslie the use of ohservable marke dara and rely a5 linde 15 possible on company specific estimates. 1 &1l significant inputs
required to fair value an insrument are obgervable, the instrumsent is included in Level 2

Lewel 3: If orie or more of the significant i:lpuuhnmhudaummmuht daa, thee imstrument is incladed i Level 3.

773 Finangisl risk management

The Company has exposure v the following riaks arising from finsncial lnstroments:
(i) Credic rik

(i) Liquidiey risk

(i} Marker risk

Risk management framework
The Company's principal Anancial liabilities comprises of barrowings, and trade and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liahilitiess is 1o finance

the Company operations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other recelvables, investments and cash and cash equivalents thar derive
directly from b operations.

The Company's sctivities expose it to a variery of financial risks, including marker risk, credit risk and liquidiry misk. The Company's primary risk mansgement
focus is to minimise porential adverse effects of marker risk on ixs financial performance. The Company uses derivative financisl instrunents to misgate foreign
exchange related risk exposures,

The Company's exposare 1o eredit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each customer and the concentration of risk from the top fow
customers, The Company’s risk mamagement assessment and policies and processes are established ro idnntify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate Tisk limits and contrels, and to monitor sach risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are
revigwed egalarly 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

This nete presents information aboar the Company's exposure to sach of the above risks, tha Company’s objectives, palicies and processes for measuring and
managing nsk.

(i} Credir risk
Credit risk bs the risk of financial koss to the Company if & customer or counterparty o Anancial insrument fls 1o meet lis contractual obligations, and arises

principally from the Company's receivables from custamers and loans. In addition, erediy risk anses from finance guarantees.

Compani's credit risk arises principally from the made receivables and cash & cash equivalents,

Customer credit sk is managed centraily by the company through coedit approvals establishing credit lmity and contingusly monitoring the credit worthiness
of the customiers 1o whom the creclie is extended in the aormal course of busitiess, The concemration of credit isk is Emired due to the fact that the cusomer
base is Large and unrelated. The Company estimates the Expected Credir Losses on the hasls of ifs evaluation of eact cose, Provision b being made where the
pursranding period exceeds 4 years @50% followed by further provislon on year (o year basis hased on the management evaluation of each cose,

Crodhit Fisks from balances with bamks are managed in accordance with the Company's policy.

Exposure to credit risks

“The carrving amount of financial assets represents the Company’s maximum expoulre o credit risk. The maximuim exposire to-credit risk a5 of A1st March, 2023,
and 315t March 2027 are as follows:

(¥ ira bundrads)

Loans 331447 1.464.058
Advances 26,662 9,711
358,109 1,493,810

ii) Liquidiey risk

Uqujditrrhki:dtﬂmdurlnmkdwtha&mmymﬂnuthe:‘hlemuuleur meet 115 obligations on time or at reasonable price. Pradent liquidiry risk
management implies maintaining cufficient cash and marketable securities and the availabilicy of funding through sn adequate amount of credit facilities 1o meey
obiligations when due. The Company's finance team is responsible for liquldity, funding a5 well as settlement management. In addition, Processes and policies
related to such risks are overseen by senior manmgement. Management moniters the Company’s lquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of
expected cash fows, The Company’s spproach to managing fiquidiy is 1o ensure, &8s far ‘as possible, that it will always have sufficient Higquidity, subject to it
restraceuring propesals, o meet ins labilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions.

In the opinion of the management, the Company’s cash Flow fram business. bormowing or financing would be sufficiers o mest the cash requiments for its
aperaroin with suppore of i lenders,



Exposure to liquidiry risk
The table beliow provides details regarding the remaining contracrusl marurities of financial Viabiliries ax the reporring date based on contractual undiscouned
payImeTILS.

-

% i hundgeds)

Barrowings 1,066,233 . S 1.066.733
ncial Labilities 71,808 . - 71808

(T im bramdreds)

Barrawings 1,556,658 - - 1,556,658
[Other financial liabihcies 168,334 - = 168,334

(i) Market risk

Sarkiet risk is the risk of loes of furure earnings, fuir value or fomre cash flisws thut may pesuls from u change in the price of a financial insrresment - The value of
3 financial instrument may change as a tesult of changes in the interest ates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices, equiry prices and cther market
changes that effect market risk sensitive instroments. Market pisk s srributable 1o sl marker risk senairive financial insruments inclading invescments and
deposits, foreign currency receivables, payables and borrowings. The gonl of market risk management is opeimization of profic and conmroling the exposurs to
market risk within scceprable limits

{a} Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk impact related 1o fair value of fature cash Aows of an exposure in foreign corremcy, which fucrare due o changes in foreign

exchange rares. The Company’s exposure to the visk of changes in foreign exchange razes Telates primarily to the import of raw materisls and spare pans, and
exports of finished goods.

Expostre to currency risk
The company Is not exposed to any curmency risk

{b) Interest rate risk

Irterest rate risk b the risk that the fair valne or furure cash flaws of & firwneial instriseent will factuare becanse of changes in market interest rates, The
Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interess rares velared primarily vo the Company’s shor term harrowing with foating lnterest rates. The
Company constantly monitors the credic markess and sebalances its financing serategies to achieve an optlmal maturity profile and financing cost.

Exposure to interest rate risk
‘The interest rate profile of the Canrpany ‘s Interest bearing fnancial insruments 3t the end of the reporting pericd are a3 follows:

(% in hundredi)
Fixmed Rate [natroments
[Loans 331447 1,464,058
Borrowings 10656233 1,556,658
1397580 3,020,756
Sensitiviry analysis

Fixed rane instrursents that are carried ar amortised cost are not subject to interest rove tisk for the purpose of semsitive analysis.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instraments
The comspany does not have variatle rate Instruments. Sa the compary It not exposed Ko interest rate Tisks.

¢} Equiry price risks
The Corspany's exposure to equity seciariies price risk arises from movement in marker price of related securities classified elther as fatr walue through OCT o s
fair value through profit and loss. The Company manages the price sk through diversified pordfilio,



28 Capical Management (Ind AS 1}
The fandamental goals of capital mansgement are 1o
- safeguard their abiliry to continie as 3 going concern 8o thar thiy £an conginge to provide retorns for shareholders and benefits for ather stakeholders, snd

- maintaln &0 optimal capiml srecrone (o reduce the cost of capital.
The Bmdnfni:emuhnﬂmgrhnnyrapnmihiﬂwwwiﬂnnmmgﬂpm] bul!'mﬂmm!mtnfcapiulthrnughpmdtmmmgmu{nfdtp]uﬂd
fiunds and Teveraging opporunities in domestie end international financial markess so 85 1o maintain investar, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
furare development of the budiness,

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital inclodes issued capiral and all arher equity reserves, The Company manages its capial structure in
light of changes in the economic and regulatory environment and the requinements of the financlal covenonis The Company apphied the tame capital ruk
management strategy that was applied in the previous period.

Thie Company manages its capial on the basis of et debr fa squity stin which & net debt (toral bersowings net of cash and cash squivalents) divided by toeal
Equity.

29, Financial Ratios

Reasons for
Particulars ‘Numerator Denominator 31032013 AL/03R012 % Wariance variance of
mare than 5%
Capital 1o risk- welghted sssens|Capiral Risk  Weighted] 10.15% 1135% -11%
ratio (CRAR) Assels
Tier I CRAR Tier]l Capital Risk Welghted |7 75% 9.71% -2
Tier [ CRAR Tierl] Capital  |Risk  Welghted}d 4% 1.68% 43% Ratio b
Agsets changed due io
decresse i
i T

0. Previowus year's figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever considered necessary te conform to this year's classification.
Accordingly, amounts and cther disclosures for the preceding years are inclused as an imtegral parr of the curment year Financial Strements snd are to be read in
relation to amounts and other disclosures relating to the currént year.

PARTIGLILARS AS PER NBFC DIRECTION ANNEXED

As per gur Repors of even dare.
For 5. B, DANDEKER & €O, = For and on behalf of the Baard

T nka

F.R.N: 301009E f ,
or Wheale Time Director

(KEDARASHISH

PARTNER THN: 00337332 DIN: 00312823
Membership Mo, 057903 i
JASAD IJ.L-E:‘A""
Place : Kolkata L VA P, Wialwaikar
Dared: 30ch May, 2013 Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Kanoria Securities &
Financial Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
Agaresh Finance & Properties Ltd (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the
Group"), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements”.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, of consolidated loss,
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAIL and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are
no Key Audit matters to cimmunicate in our report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, donsolidated financial performance and
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consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board
of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of

preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled
entities.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

T
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we report in respect of the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order that; '
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There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order (CARD) report on the financial statements of Agaresh Finance & Properties
Limited, subsidiary company incorporated in India, included in the Consolidated financial statements,

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies [Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group.

b) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

¢) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company incorporated in India.

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in India to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities ["intermedlanes”) w1th the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:
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« directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Holding Company or its subsidiary
company incorporated in India or

» provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(if) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in India
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or its
subsidiary company incorporated in India shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or
« provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under subclause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company and its subsidiary
incorporated in India hence compliance with Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the remuneration paid
during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is incorporated in India to its
directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any
director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is incorporated in India, is not in excess of
the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For and on behalf of
S.B.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.301

Kedarashish Bapat
Partner

M.No.- 057903
UDIN: 2505 3903RLNVED D (73

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2023
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Annexure to the Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the
vear ended 31st March, 2023, we have audited the imternal financial controls over financial reporting of
Kanoria Securotoes & financial Services Limited (“the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary, Agaresh
Finance & Properties Limited, incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence 1o company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable
financial informarion, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by ICAl and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting. including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2023, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For and on behalf of
S.B.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.3010 EE,

Kedarashish 3 Aeeo
Partner -
M.No.- 057903

UDIN: 2305 F5 oS BV EDD LE773

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2023



EANORLA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Consolidared Balunce Sheet as at 31st March, 2023
I ¥ in hundrads )

Financial Assets
Cah and cash equivalents 4 47.501 54,994
Bank Balance other than (a) above 5 4,631 4,406
Receivables
-Trade Receivables L] &0, 108
~Orher Receivahles . 450
Loarns 7 325803 1 458,830
Investments 8 OR1.574 432,605
Cther Financial Assers 2 1042 116,645
‘Toral Financial Assets 1,450,731 2,148,035
Non Finanelal Assets
Fropery, Flant and Equipment 10 £9,271 19.271
Deferred Tax Asset 7,716 -
Total Mon Finaneial Assegs 26,987 19271
Total Assets 1477718 2,167,307
LIABILTTIES AND EQUTTY
|LIABILITIES
I!—'I.mr_u.'l Liabilities
Payables
rude Pavables
i) Total oustanding dues of micra enterprises and
other small enterprises %

i1} Tosal outstanding dues of creditors cther than
rmicro enterprises and other small enterprises =

Other Payables

it Tonal ourstanding dues of micro enterprises and

other small enterprises _
i1} Toeal outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enrerprises and other small enterprises bOL630 12456
Preference Shares 1l 370,000 370.000
Bﬂ'rmwin&;_ 12 1,066,233 1,556,658
{Orther Financial Lisbilivies 13 71,508 168,334
Total Financial Liabilities 1,518,671 2,107 ABB
Mon Financial Liahilities

Deferred Tax Liability . 1,240
Eong Term Provisions 14 10619 10,419
Total Non Financial Lishitiries 10,619 11,859
Total Liabilities 1,529.2%0 2,119,247
Equity

[4) Equity Share Capital 15 408,000 408,000
(b} Oeher Equiry 16 (459.571) (360.040)
Tocal Equity (51,572 47,960
Total Equity and Linbilities 1477718 2,167 307

FARTICULARS AS PER NBFC DIRECTION ANNEXED

As per our Report of even date;

For 5. B. DANDEKER & CO. . For and en behatf of the Beard
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{(KEDARASHISH 'y L, o Dl peicpe Whole Time Direct
FARTNER T DIN: 0033731 DIN: 00312823
Membership No. 057903 f ey L
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Flace : Kolkata Ajit P. Walwaikar
Dated: 30th May, 2023 Company Secretary
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EKANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Consalidated Statement of Profis & Loss for the vear ended 315t March, 2023

from operations

[Interess Income

17

71099

Dividend Income

12,923

Other Operating Tncome

18

13,696}

Total Revenue from cperations

89,325

Other Income

12

T

6107

[Total Income (T+1T)

&7 405

119,447

2|E |||~

EXPENSES:

Finance Costs

105,796

102,363

Employee Benefits Expense

| her Expenses

X1

3826

3283

Total Expenses {IV))

109,622

105,546

FROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (TII-TV)

{217}

13,800

gl

TAX EXPENSES

Currens Tax

2,104

Earfier Years Tax

419

Deferred Tax

FROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (V-VI) AFTER TAX

11,2568

PROFIT/LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE MON-
CONTROLLING INTEREST

COMPANY

PROFIT/LOSS ATTRIBUTAELE TO THE OWNERS OF THE

{22.370)

11,268

= é |

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

LA, (i) Trems that will not be reclassified to profic o loss

(86,118)

11,921

(i) Income taxes an iterns thar will not be reclassified v profit
or loss

{8,955}

1,240

{B. (i) lvams that will be reclsssified ro profit of los

Jl=ss

|OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO
THE NON CONTROLLING INTEREST

|OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ITHE SHAREHCOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

ITOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (NET OF
TAXES)

177, 163}

10,581

(Total Comprehensive Income/{Loss) for the year (VI + X)

{99,532)

21,949

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTAELE TO
ITHE NON CONTROLLING INTEREST

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ITHE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(99,532)

21,549

X1

X
Xm
XV

Earnings per Equity Share [Nominsl Value: of Share - Rs, 10]

Basic & Diluted

(8.55)

028

[Significant accounting policies

La

PARTICULARS AS PER MEFC DIRECTION ANNEXED

As per our Repont of even date
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Place

: Kolkata

Dated: 30th May, 2023

UDN: 2L0S 2RV ED D LT3

Far and on behalf of che Board
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[
Afit P, Walwaikar
Company Secretary
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KANOQORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(T in hundreds)
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Met Profit/(Loss) before tax & éxtra ordinary frema 22217 13,801
Adjustments for:
Depreciation . i
Securinies Transaction Tax B85 900
Dividend Income {12,893) (3.373)
FProfit on Sele ef Tnvestments 1561 (10477} (17,155} (19,6283
Orperating Profi before working eapltal changes (32,694)) (58273
Adpistments for
(Tncrease)/Decrease in Tnvestments on Falr Value through
Frofi and Loss Account 1696 {4,552
{ Increase)/Decrease in Borrowings {490,425 ) 582491
|CIncrease)/Decrease in. Other Bank Balances (2359 (465)
II:lncruszL"Decrease in Other Payables (1,866 {10,532}
(Increase}/Decrease in Ocher Receivables 450 738
|ilncrease}/Decrease in Loans Given 1,138,247 {667 513)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets 3,604 12,695
|iIncrease)/Decrease in Trade Recelvables 80,108 {B0.108)
|iincrease)/Decrease in Other Finaneial Lishilities (96,526 £211,274)
632,063 (378,820
Cash generated from operations 599,369 (384,647
Direct Taxes Paid 21,843 18,794
Met Cash From operating sctivities  (A) 621,212 (363,853
B. Cash Flow from [nvesting Activities:
Securiries Transaction Tax 22551 (00
Dividend Ineome 119723 3373
Profit on Sale of Investments (1561} 17155
|Sale/(Purchase) of Investmnents (638,782} (628 305) {169,440 {14981 2|
MNet Cesh inflow from Investing Activities (B) (628,305) (149,812)
(C. Cash Flow from Financing Activiries:
Tnteress paid on short term borrowings - -
Net Cash from Financing Activities (C) - =
Net Increase/{Dectease) in cash & cash equivalents
{A+B+C) {7.083) {515,565)|
[Cash & cash equivalents as st 1st April, 2022 54,994 570,659
Cash & cash equivalents as at 31sc March, 2023 47,901 54,994
NOTE : FIGURES IN BRACKET REPRESENT OUTFLOW
PARTICULARS AS PER NBFC DIRECTION ANNEXED
Az per our Report of evers date.
For 5. B, DANDEKER & CO. = For and on behalf of the Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS . S
F.R.N: 301009E
Q/ W
4 A'K Goenka
-’ Whole Time Direcror

PARTNER DIN; 00337332 DIN: 00312823
Membership Mo, 057903 = -

LT S Rt = BT
Place : Kolkums Ajit P. Walwaikar
Dated: 30th May, 2023 Company Secretary
DN 2305 Y92 BEVEDDLLTS



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Consolidated Stmtement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended 31ar March, 2003

. e

Cuorrent Reporting Period (% 1o hundreds)
Changes in Equity | Restated balance | Changes in equity] Balance at
Share Capital due | atthe beginning | share capital the end of
Lo prior period of the current during the the current
Balance al the beginning of the current errors reporting period | current year reporting
reporting period period
408,000 = 408,000 408,000
Previous Reporting Period [T in hundreds)
Changes in Equity | Restated balance | Changes in equity] Halance at
Share Capital due | at the beginning share capital the end of
to prior period | of the previous during the the
Balance at the beginning of the previous errors reporting perfod | previous year | previous
reporting period reporting
08,000 - 408,000 408,000
B. Other Equiry
Current Reporting Period

Balance as at 1st April, 2022
Changes in accounting policy or prior
period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the

10,681

T o hundreds)

rrent reporting period 39,004 (409,715 10,681 {360,040

Profin/Loss for the year (2237 - {22.370)

Comprehensive Income - (77.162) (77,162)

Total Comprehensive [ncome 39,004 {432,095) (66,481 (459,572)
Transfer to Scattory Reserve - - -

Balance as ar 315t March, 2023 39,004 (432,0095) (66.481)]  (459.572)

Balance as at 1t April, 2021

Changes in sccounting policy or prior
period errors

Reszared Balance at the beginning of the
previous Teporting period

Profit/Lass for the year

Orher Comprehensive [noome

Torl Comprehensive Income

Transfer o Suatuory Reserve
Balance ss at 31st March, 2022

6,727

36,717
297
39,004

418.716)

(4187167
11,268

(407 448
122771
(409,715)

10681
10,681

10,581

(T In bundreds)

PARTICLILARS AS PER NBFC DIRECTION ANNEXED

As per-our Report of even date.
For 5. B. DANDEKER & CO.

CHARTERED ACOOUNTANTS - .
F.R.N: 3071009E

{KEDARASHISH BAPA
PARTNER
Membership Mo, D57903

Place : Kolkata
Dated: 30th May, 2023

UDIN: 2505 FT03 RV EDp (LT3R

.-Lr". e
1 L

Ajit P. Walwaikar
Company Secratary

AR SAx X

For and on behalf of the Board

w2

A K Goenka
Whole Time Director
DiN: 00312823

B LM,
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KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

1 Company Overview

Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited (" The Company ) is a Non Banking Finance Company having its
Registered office at 8, B.B.D Bagh East Kolkata 700001, The company was incorporated on 3(th August 1916. The
company's shares are listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited(CSE),

2 Basis of Preparation

a) Statement of Compliance

These Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) (to the
extent notified) and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, The Ind AS are prescribed under Section
133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {(as amended).

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and adoptions was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101-
First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles
generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (IGAAP) which was the previous GAAP with 1st April, 2018 as the transistion date.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

b) Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is Company’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is also Indian Rupees,.

c) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for certain g
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction berween market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique, In determining the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. b

d) Use of Judgments and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results :
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: Key assumptions —

(i) Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments:

When the fuir values of financial assets and fnancial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value Is measured using certain valuation techniques. The inputs 1o
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, bur where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk
and volatility. KT




(i) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:

The certain key assumptions about the Hkelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources. Provision is towards
known contractual obligation, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of taxes, duties and other levies, if
any, in respect of which management believes that there are present obligations and the settlement of such obligations
are expected to result in outflow of resources, to the extent provided for.

&) Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework with respect to
the measurement of fair values. The managemenr regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments,

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assers or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asser or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices),

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ohservable marker data (unobservable imputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which rhe change has oceurred.

3 Significant accounting policies

A) Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial
Statements based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

B) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

i. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable 1o the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade receivables

are initially measured ar transaction price. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade
date.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

- Amortised cost

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets,




Financial assets at amortised cost

A Financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financidl asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The effective
interest rate (EIR) amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss,

Financial assets at FVTOCI

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding,

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as ‘well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI),

Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above caregories are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Starement of Profit & Loss.

Other equity investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other
Comprehensive Income’. However, in limited circumstances, cost may be appropriate estimate of fair value. That may
be the case if insufficient recent information is available to measure fair value, or if there is wide range of possible fair
value measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109,

ii, Financial liability

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable o the
acquisition of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are intially
measured at fair value,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in following categories:
* Financial liabilities through profit or loss (FVTPL)

+ Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities through FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative ar it is designated
as such on initial recognition, Financial Habilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.




Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Amy gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximares fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition
A financial liability {or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms shall be
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liabilicy.
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of ir (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) shall be accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial hiability and the recognition of a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability} extinguished ar
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, shall be recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only

when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right vo set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

C) Impairment

Impairment of financial instruments : financial assets

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials
assets in FVTPL caregory,

For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit
losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not
increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expecred credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition, The Company's trade
receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an
amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. If any such indication exists the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible ta
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs,

=R




An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assers.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

D) Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recopnised a5 a finance cost.

E)} Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable thar the economic benefits will flow to the company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

F) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

G) Income tax
Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equiry or

in OCL

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 1o the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period.

H} Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares vutstanding during the period.

.



For the purpose of calculating dilured earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares,
I) Property, Plant and Equipment

Froperty, plant and eguipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition or deemed cost on the date of transition less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost of an asser comprises of cost of acquisition or
construction and includes, where applicable, inward freight, duties and taxes, installation expenses, professional fees,
borrowing costs, initial estimates of the cost of dismantling, cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and
equipment’s and other costs directly attributable to the bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the intended manner and purposes. Capital Spare parts which are integral part of the
plant and equipment are capitalised. When significant pares of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the same are capitalised and old component is derecognised.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major componenits) of property, plant and equipment. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the
carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

-

Depreciation on PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation has been provided as
per the useful life specified under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013,

1) Principles of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the group is exposed to or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Consolidation of
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date the Group gains the control until the date the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding twogether like items
of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised profits on
tramsactions between group companies are eliminated in full. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
tramsaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred assets. Appropriate adjustments for deferred taxes
are made for temporary differences that arise from the elimination of unrealised profits and losses from intra-group
transactions or undistributed earnings of Group's entity included in consolidated profit and loss, if any.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
Comsolidated Financial Statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments
are made to that group member's financial statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies. The
financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as
that of the parent company, When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary,
the subsidiary prepares additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to
enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impractical 1o do so.
Non-controlling interest in the profit / loss and equity of the subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss and the consolidated balance sheet, respectively.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of contral, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
This results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and noncontrolling interests 1o reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference berween the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.




In case the Group ceases to consolidate a subsidiary because of a loss of control, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purpose of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial agsers. When the Group loses control
over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets, including goodwill, and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying amount of
any non-controlling interests, cumulative translation differences recorded in equity and recognise resulting difference
between the fair value of the investment retained and the consideration received and total of amount derecognised as
gain or loss attributable to the Parent. In addition, amounts, if any, previously recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income in relation to that entity are reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as would be required if the
parent had directly disposed of the related assetsar liabilities.



KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes om Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{% in hundrads)

e
31032022
P ST

4 |Cash & Cash Equivalents

(Cash in hand .
Balances with Banks - in current accounts 47.501 54,994

47,901 54,904

(¥ in hundreds)
| 1032022

In Fixed Deposits (with maturity of more

[than 3 months and upto 12 months) 4,631 4.406
4,631 4,406
¥ in hundreds)

P T
IR T
Particulars

6 |Trade Receivables
Trade Necervables considered good- secured .
Trade Receivables considered good- - &0,108
Trade Receivables which: have significant -
incTease in credie risk
Trade Recelvables - credit impaired

Gross - 80,108
Less Allowances for impairment loss on -
credit impaired trade receivables

Fx‘e: : 80,108

Trade Receivables Ageing
Az at 31st March 2023

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Lessthan6 | 6 months to | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 | Total
months 1 year years

(1) Undisputed Trade receivables - - : 3
considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables = which = . = : =
have significant increase in credit risk

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — credit - . . -
impaired

[iv] Disputed Trade receivables - : - : - = -
considered good

[v] Disputed Trade receivables - which - = . 3 3
have significant increase in credit risk

(vi] Disputed Trade receivables - credit - . . - . -
imipaired




As ar 315t March 20322

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Lessthan& |6 monthsto |1-2 years |2-3years |More than3 |Total
months 1 year |years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 80,108 80,108
considered good
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - which - - -
have significant increase in credit risk
(Eid) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit = -
impaired
[iw) Disputed Trade receivables - - -
considered good
(v] Disputed Trade receivables — which - -
have significant increase in credit risk
(vi] Disputed Trade receivables - credit - 5 =
impaired

(% tn hundreds)

Loans
- Related Party 14,640 10,603
- Others 310,943 1,448,327
325,583 1,458,830




KANORILA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31s March, 2023

(% in hundreds)

e |

Tirupati Holding Ltd 750,000 40,200 730,000 40,200
Pradyumna Finance & Properties Lud 125,000 12,559 125,000 12,559
Supertech Additives Led 125,000 12559 125,000 12,559
Samaresh Investments Lid 85,000 4.995 85,000 9,925
New India Shipping Lines Ltd 38,000 4560 38,000 4,560
Asarco Investments & Trading Co. Pvt Led 20,000 1.200 20,000 1,200
Anchor Leasing Led 62,000 7.008 62,000 7.008
88,011 88,011
In fully paid up Non - Cumularive
Redeemable Preference Shares
Kay-5ec Brokerage House India Lrd 50000 50,250 50000 S0250
Pradyumna Finance & Propersies Ltd
534,600 53727 534,600 53,707
Supertech Additives Led 50,000 50,250 50,000 50,250
154,277 154,207
At Fair Value through Other
|Comprehensive Income
Fully Paid Equity Shares-Quoted
Chemplast Sanmar Lid 7.700 26,785 7,700 51,217
[OFC Limired 20,000 15,720 20,000 12,350
Indiabulls Reat Estares Led 5,000 2,445 5,000 5,052
India Grid Trust 250,800 338,028
{Poonawalla Fincorp Lid 8,200 23985 8,200 22,173
Powergrid Infrastracture Investment Trust
271,834 273016
Seeel Authority of India Ltd 20,000 146,540 20,000 19,710
Tara Mozors Lid 5.000 21,040 5.000 21,687
Vedanta Limited 6,000 16467 6,000 24,20
734,006 156,390
i Mutual Funds
HDFC Uhra Short Term Fund-Regular
Plan Growth 203385513 203,386 24,971
- 24,971
At Fair Value through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL)
Fully Paid Equity Shares-Quoted
Arvind Polyeot Ltd 2,000 147 2,000 147
Banswara Synthetics Lid 4,050 4906 4,050 8,602
Gremach CNC Led 4,000 152 4,000 152
Rajratan Synthetics Led 2,000 W) 5.000 90
Tru, SHT, Led 2,000 15 2,000 I5
5,310 2,006
981,574 432,605

Ba. Refer note on Other Equity Investments under Note 3 Significant Accounting policies. Due to the
exceptional circumstances therein described cost has been taken to be the best estimite of fair value in case of

some oF the investments,




KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{" in hundreds)

Balances with Govt Authorities 2,859 2,690
Advances 26,662 29,712
Income Tax Payments (Net of Provisions) (2,092) 19,905
Interest Receiwable 63,573 64,336

91,042 116,643

(% in hundreds)
10 |Property Plant and Equipment

(A) Gross Carrying Value

As at 1st April, 2021 256,657 340 a1 257,088
Additions = - =

Disposals / deductions - - - -
As at 31st March, 2022 256,657 340 91 257,088
Additions =

Disposals / deductions - z
As at 31st March, 2023 256,657 340 21 257,088
(B) Accumulared Depreciation

As at 1st April, 2021 237,399 332 86 237,817
Charge for the year = =
Deductions - - -
As at 31st March, 2022 237,359 332 86 237,817
|Charge for the year - <

Deductions - - »
As at 31st March, 2023 237,399 332 86 237,817
|(C ) Net Block (A-B)

| As at 1st April, 2021 19,258 8 5 19,271
| As at 31st March, 2022 19,258 8 5 19,271
As at 31st March, 2023 19,258 B 5 19,271

Note a: The company considers 5% of the asset value as residual value and does not provide depreciation on such
assets which have been depreciated to the extent of 95 per cent of the acquisition cost.

The lease period of the fixed assets of the Company on lease has expired and these assets are in the possession of
the lessee but are carried in the books pending final settlement of disputes and recavery of lease dues from them.
In view of the status of the Company's leased assets, no depreciation is charged on the same.




Sores [Pardeulars

(T in hundreds)

11 |Preference
7.5% Non Comulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs 100 each 370,000 70,000
370,000 370,000

3,70,000 7.5% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 100 each are redeemalble
before the expiry of a period of ten years from the date of allotment Le. 18th March, 2002, subject
to the option of the Company to redeem the same at any time after three years from the date of
allotment either in whole or in parts by giving three months’ notice. The Preference shares are
pending for redemption in accordance with section 55 of the Companies Acr, 2013

(¥ in hundreds)
Unsecured Loans from Related Parties 75,024 B46,593
Unsecured Loans from Crihers 991,200 710,065
1,066,233 1,556,658
{% in hundreds)

13 |Other Short Term Financial Liabilities
Incerest Payable 32,400 128926
Security Deposits 16,860 16,860
|Other Liabilities 22548 21548
71,808 168,334
(¥ in hndreds)
Frovision for Non Performing Leased Assets 10,619 10,619
10,619 10,619
(% in hundreds)
3] 'r--;.. :_r".-"j';

Authorised
2,50,00,000 (31st March 2022 : 2,50,00,000)

2,500, 2,500,
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each SR G
10, 00,000(3 15t March 2022 ; 10,00,000) 7.5%
MNon Cumulative Redeemable Preference 1,000,000 1,000,000
Shares of Rs 100 each

3,500,000 3,500,000
Issued Subscribed and Fully Paid up
40,80,000 (31st March 2022 : 40,80.000 )
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each issued otherwise 408,000 408,000
than in cash

408,000




15a) 39,90,000 Equity shares were allorted as fully paid-up by way of Bonus Shares by capitalisation of
Reserves.

15b) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

At the beginning of the period 4,080,000 408,000 408,000 4,080,000 408,000
|Cutstanding ar the end of the period 4,080,000 408,000 408,000] 4,080,000 408,000

15c) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled wo
one vote per share,

15d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDERS
Pratap Holdings L1d (Holding Company) 3,524,151 86.38%|  B638%] 3524151 86.38%)

15e) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows

% Change
Shares held by the promoter at the end of the year during the
Year
S.no |Promoter Name No. of Shares ot Toral
Shares
1}Pratap Holdings Ltd (Holding Company) 3,524,151 86.38%]| Nii
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as ar March 31, 2022 is as follows
% Change
Shares held by the promoter at the end of the year during the
Year
S.no |Promoter Name No. of Shares % of Total
Shares

i

Pratap Holdings Ltd {Holding Company) 3,524,151 86.38%] Nil




KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(¥ in hundreds)

16 |Other Equity
|Gnmpnnentn
Statutory Reserve 39,004 2 39,004 36,727 2277 39,004
Retained Earnings (409,725)] (22370)] (432.095) (418716) 8991  (409,725)
Comprehensive
Income 10,681 (77.162) {66,481) - 10,681 10,681
(360,040)] (99.532)] (459.572)] (381.989) 21,949]  (360,040)




KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Motes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{Interest on Loans

Income from finawclng activity 71,0599 83415
71,099 B5.415
(% inn hundreds)

027
LML

Oither [nteres 230 1630
Profit/{Loss) on Sale of Shares (2,859 17155
Profit|Loss) on Sale of Munmal Fund (Debr Fund) 1,298 1,263
Profiv(Lows) on Speculation of Shares 139
Profit/TLoss} on Derivatives 6204 7568
Treasury income 45 -
7.079 26,107

Interast Paid on Loan

105,796

105,796

[Payment to Auditors

- Audit fees

- Other Taxation and certification matters

Advertisement Expenses

Legal & Professional Charges

Filing Fees

Profession Tax

Membership & Subscripiion

Directors' Suting fees

Comveyance

Securities Transaction Tax

Miscellaneous Expenses

Teo

I: 5 Shm

Wieighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding

during the year 4,080,000 4,080,000
Mumber of Shares considered as weighted average

shares and potenrial shares outstanding for caleulation

of Diluted Earmings Per Share 4,080,000 | 4,080,000
Profit after Tax atrribaable 1o Equity Shareholders {22,370y 11,268
Nominal Yalue of Ordinary Shares 10 10
Earnings Per Share {Bagle) (.55) 0.28
Earnings Per Share {Diluted) (0,55} 028




KANORIA SECURITIES & FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31s¢ March, 2023

13, Opessring Segments b
An operaning segment is 3 component of the Company that engages in business scrivries from which (e may eam revenues and incur expenses, including reversues and

expenses that relate 1o mansactions with any of the Company’ s athes camponents, and for which discreve finanetal information is svailable. All operating segmens'
operating results are reviewed regularly by rhe Company's management to make decisinns about resources 1o be dllocated to thse segments and assess thedr perfarmance.

The Company has anly one reporable segment i.e. Non Banking Financial Company and hence IND AS 108 Operating Segments not applicable to the Company.

24, Related Party Disclosure
Hﬂlmd&:mhmdpmwhmmnﬂmwuuﬂmmhmmMm

Enterprise which has Conrrol over the entiry

Haolding Company

ii) Name ﬂmmmmmmmmmmm year
a} Key Mansgerial Persons .

1. Shri Rajeey Agarwal Director

2. 5hri Anil Kumar Goenks Whale Time Director & Chief Financial Officer
3, Shri Biswaranjan Chakraborty Direcror

4. Smt. Vandana Kanoria Director

5. Shri Rohir Kumar Pandey Director

6. Shri Smgar Shaw Directar

b} Relative of Key Managerial Person

1. 5hri Ajay Kumnar Kanorla

2, Shrl Pransv Kanoris

3. 8mt Urvi Sheth

<} Enterprise over which Key Mamagerial Person is having significant Influenice
1. Ay Kumar Kanoria (HUF)

2. Ajay Kanona Family Trast
3. Tanna Electro Mechanics Pyt Lid

iii. Transections with Related Parties

i : (% in hundreds) I

Pratap Holdings Led B
iA Holding Company) [3L032022 6,704 3,250 H49 - 10,603 I




3106,2023.

} 55.959 i

A5,604
31/0a/2022 7,158 (194} 44044 11,604

St Vandana Kanoria 31032023 534,500 1,198,000 2,745 1,742 245 .
31/03/2022 185 506 743,000 23,049 419,055 534,500

Shri Alsy Kumar Kanoris 31052025 110,000 - 7,353 117,353 -
317052022 9907 110,000 3637 13544 110,000

Shri Pranav Kanoria 3100 50,000 = 55 50,055 E
3100/2022 47 764 51,000 478 49247 50,000

Ajay Kumir Kanoria (HUF) 311372023 111,069 - 7425 118,494 :
310372022 112,293 116,000 5039 122,263 111,069
| Ajay Kanoria Family Trust 31032024 29,420 - 2,354 2,354 20,420
31032022 3131 S0.420 389 4,620 29,420

¢} Ciher Transactions

3 —

{¥ in hundreds)

Shri Rajeey Agarwal

Shri Anil Kumar Coenka

Shri Sagar Shaw

Shri Hiswaranjan Chakraborty

Shri Robit Kumar Pandey

HEEEE

SEEEE

15. Disclosure relating to loans or security given by the Company as per the requirements of section 1864 of the Companies Act. 2003 a5 on 315t March, 2003,

Particulars Loan amouns  [Purpose Marurity
Williamson Magor & Co. 240,000 | Business purpose | Within | Year
Amnil Limited 50,197 | Business parpose | Within 1 Year
Capriccio Trading Pvt Lid 5.595 | Business purpose | Within | Yesr
Tirapati Screen Printing Co Lid 14,131 | Business parpose | After | Year
Pratap Holdings Led 14,840 | Business purpose | After | Year
Kay-sec Drokerage House India Lid 1,020 | Business purpose | Afier | Year




26 Financial Instruments and Relared Disclosures

26.1 Fair values vy carrying amounts

The fair values of financial sssers and liskilities, together with the carrying smounts shown in the sutement of financial position of 31sr Mareh, 2023 are as Sollows:

[Cash and cash equivalents

47,901

(2 i hondieds)

47,901 47,590
Bank Dakance other than (a) above 4,631 - - 4,531 4.631
Investments 242,338 5,007 BOR 232 1055497 931,334
[Loans 325,583 - - 305,583 35583
[Trade Recelvables -
Other Receivables - . - . -
Orher Financial Asyets 91042 . - 91,042 91,042
711,395 5,037 808,222 1,524,654 | 1,400,481
Barrawings 1,066,233 - - 1066233 | 1,066,233
Other Payables 10,630 - = 10,630 10630
Preference Shares 370000 - 370,000 370,000
Cher Amancial liabilides 71.808 71.808 71,808
1518.671 - - 1518,571] 1518671

Thel'-ihﬂmufﬂnm:i.llu.eumdMMWMMWWMEMMHMMMMBMMMWHMm:

{® in humdreds)

Cash and cazh eq - 54,994 S-L
Bank Balance other than (a) above 4 406 = E 4,406 4,406
Mnvestments 242,738 5.087 169,440 416,715 432,605
Loans 1,458 830 - - 1458 B30 1,458,800
[Trade Recéivables 80,108 - BO.108 80,108
|Oxher Receivables 450 - 450 00
ID!:’hn' Fimancial Assets 116,643 - . 116,553 116,593
1,957,669 5.057 153440 2,132,096 | 2,148 438
|-Bm1:rwingl 1,556,658 - - 1.556,658 | 1556658
Jixher Payables 12,496 12,496 12,49
{Preference Shares 370,000 370.000| 370,000
[Other financial liabilities 168,334 - 168304 | 168384
| 2,107,488 - - 2,107.488 | 2,107,488
26.2 Fair Value Measurement

The fair walues of the financial assets and liabilities are inclucled ar the amount st which the instrument could be exchange in » currens tramsiction between willing parries,

other than in forced or Haquidatson sale.

The Company has established the fiollowing fair value hisrarehy that categories the value into 3 levels, The inpuns to valuarion technlques ased to measure fair valoe of

financial inscruments are:

Lewvel 1: The hierarchy uses queted (adjusted) prices in active markets for idenrical assets or labllitied, The fair value-of all bonds which are trsded in the sock exchanges Is

valued using the closing price or dealer quotations as at the reparting date.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in‘an active market (for example traded bonds, over the counter derivatives) is determined using

valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable marker data and rely = little as possible on company specific estimates. If all significant inpuss required to fair
value an instrument ure olservable, the instrument is included in Level 1

Level 3: Bf one or mare of the significant inpats is not based on observable market data, the instriomens is included fn Level 3;




26,3 Financial risk mansgement

The Company has exposure to the fallowing risks arising from financial instrumenis:
(i) Credit rsk

{ii) Liguidiry risk

(iii} Market risk

Risk management framewark

The Company's principsl financial Labilities comprises of borrowings, and trade and other payables. The maain purpose of these fnanctal Hahilities is to finsnce the
Company aperatians. The Comparsy's principal financial sssets include mrade and other receivables, mvestments and cash snd cash squivalents thar derive directly from ins
aperasions,

The Campany's activities expose it to a variety of Anancial risks, including marker risk, coedit risk and liquidiry rsk The Company's primary risk managerent foous 18 to
minimise patential adverse effecs of market rick on is finamclal performance. The Company uses derivative Anancial instraments to mitkgste foreign exchange relared risk
exposiires,

The Company's exposute to credic risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of sach customer snd the concentration of nsk from the top few cussomer, The
Company’s risk management assessment and policies and processes sre established to identify and snalyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk Timits and

cansrols, and o monier such rigks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management palicies and processes are reviewed regularly ro reflect changes in
market condirions and the Company's sctivities,

This note presents informarion sbout the Campany's exposure ta each of the sbove risks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk

(i} Credit risk

Credir risk is the risk of financial bees to the Company if & cosomer of counterpany to a financial instrument Bxlls to meet it contractuzl abligations, and arives primcipally
from the Company's receivables from customers and loans. Im addition, eredit risk srises from fnance guarantees.

Company’s credit risk arises principally from the rrade receivables snd cash & cash squivalents,

Custamar credit risk is managed cemmally by the company through eredit approvals establishing credir limits and continouly monisoring the credit worthiness of the
customers to whom the credit s extended in the normal course of business. The concenrranon of credit risk s limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and
unrelated. The Company estimates the Expected Credit Losses on the basis of its evahaation of each case, Provision is being made whero the oustanding period exceeds 4
years @509 followed by further provision on year to year basis based on the management evaluation of each case,

Crwdie risks from balances with bariks are managed in accordiance with the Commpany’s policy

Exposure to credic risks
The carrying amount of Anancial assets represents the Company’s maxinmm exposure (o credis risk. The maxingum exposare to credit rigk s of 31s March, 2023 snd 3lex
March, 2022 are as follows:

(% in humdreds)

1,458,830

Advances 26,662 %712
352,245 1,488,542
ii) Liquidiry risk

Liquidity risk is definied as the risk that the Company will nos be able 1o sertle or meet s obligations on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidicy risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cosh. and marketable securiries and the availability of funding through an adequate smount of credit Eacilitiss 1o mees obligations when due.
The Comepany’s finance team is responsible for liquidiry, funding as well as sertlement mansgement. In sddition, Processes and policies related to such risks sre mverseen by
senlor management, Management manitors the Company’s liquidity position through ralling forecass on the basis of expected cash Nows, The Company’s approach o
managing liguidity is o ensure, a5 far a5 possible, that It will always have sufficiens liquidicy, subject to its resuracroring propoaals, 1o meet ire Habiliies when dus, ander
both normal and stressed conditions,

In the opinion of the minagement, the Company's cash flow from business, borrawing or financing would be sufficient 1o meet the cash requiments for its operation with
support of s lenders.

Exposure ro liquidiry risk
The table below provides detulls regarding the remaining conractual marurities of financial liabilities at the reparting date based on conmracrual undiscounted payments.

et Mare

1066233 | 1,066,233
Cther Floancial Liabilities 71,608 71,808

nmvj:w

1,556,658
168,334

w-ings
Crther Financial Liabilities




Market risk Is the risk of loss of furure earnings. fir vatue or futare cash Bows thar may result from a change in the price of 8 financlal instrument . Thie value of & financlal | 8
instrument may change as a result of changes in the interes) rates, foreign currency exchange rzes, commodity prices, equity priced and other marker changes thar effers

market plsk sensitive instruments. Market risk i ateributable to all markes risk semsitive financial instrumeiis including investmenes and deposits, foreign currency

receivables, payables and horrowirsgs. The godl of market rsk management is optimizazion of proflt and controling the exposure to market risk within scceprable limirs.

{8} Currency risk
Fartign currency nisk is the risk impact related to fair value or future cash Nows of an exposre in foreign currency, which fluctuate dise to changes in forsign eschangs
rates, The Company's exposure to The risk of changes in foreign exchange sates relates primarily to the import of raw materiaks and spare parts. and exparts of fimished

Exposure to currency risk
The company is nor exposed 10 any crrency risk.

(b} Interest race risk

Interest rate risk fs the risk that the fair value or furure cash flows of o financial mstrument will Auctoare because of changes i marker intetest tates. The Company
exposure to the risk of changes i market Interest rates related primunily o the Company's shart term borrewing with floating intesest rates. The Company comstantly
monitors the credit markets and rebilances ies financing serategles to achbsve an optimal maturity profile and financing cost

Exposire to interest rate risk

The incerese rate profibe of the Company ‘s interest bearing financial instrumens ot the end of the reporting period are ad follows:
(¥ in hondoeds)

Loans 335,583 1,458,830
BnrmﬁnE 1J066,733 1,556,658

1,391,815 3,015,488
Sensitiviry analysis

Fixed rave tnstroments chat are carried ot amortised cost are not sublect to interest rate rsk for the purpose of sensirive analysis.
Cash flow sengitivity analysis for variable rate insruments
‘ The company does not have variable rate instrumenss. So the: company is not exposed to interest rate risks,

) Equity price risks
The Comipany's exposire to equity: securities price risk arises from movement in market price of related securities classified elther as fair value through OCT or as fair value
through profit &nd loss. The Cempany manages the price risk through diversified portfalio.

17 Capital Management (Tnd AS 1)

The fundsmentsl goals of capltal mansgement are o :

- safeguard their ability o continue a5 & going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. ind

- maintain an oprimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,

The Board of Direcvors has the primary responsibility to maintain & strong capital base and reduce the eosr of capital through prudent management of deployed furnds and

leveraging opportunities in domestic and international financial markets so as to maintain investor, creditor snd marker confidence and to sustain farore development of the
business.

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital inchudes issued capital and all orher equity reserves. The Company manages its capital structurs in Hght of
changes in the economic and regulstory envitonment and the requirements of the Amancial covenants, The Comparny spplied the same capital ristk managemenn srategy
that was applied in the previous period.




28, The tousl comprehensive income has been ateributed 1o the owner of the Company and to the non-coneroling interess aven if this results in the nof-controling tnreres
having defics balance. Hence, the non-controlling inrerest are restated and reclassified &s per the requirements of Ind-AS,

Kanerin Securiries & Financisl Services Ltd 186,19 (96,020 505 2859

Subsidisries:
Tndian
Agaresh Tinance & Propernies Lid {86.19) 44,450 9495 45.061
Minorry Interests in subsidiary :
Indian

Aga inance & Properties Lid . i - .
etal 100.00 (51,572) 100.00 4756l

Parenr:
Kareoria Sacurithes & Financiat Services Led 97.27 21,7591 105,75 11,887
15ubsidiayies:
Indian
Agatesh Finance & Properties Lid 73 1] {5.75] (61%)
Minorty Interests in subaidiary :
Indian

Agaresh Finance & Properties Lid ; =

[Toml 100,00 (22.370)| %5 m

Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Led 10000 (77.167) 100,00 10.581
Subsidiaries:
Indian

garesh Finance & Properties Ltd - - -
Minorty Interests in subsidiary :
Indian

Agaresh Finance & Properties Lid 3

Parent;
Kamorta Securities & Financial Services Lid 9239 {98,921} 102 89 1,568
Subsidiaries:
Indian
Agaresh Finance & Properties Lid 6] {611} (2.89) {619}
Minorty Interests in subsidiary :
Indlan

Agaresh Finance & Properties Lid - =




1. Previcas year's figuses have been reworked. regrouped, renrranged and reclassified wherever considered necessary to conform ta this year's clsssification, Accaedingly,
amounts and ocher disclosures for ehe preceding years are included ss an insegral parr of the currem year Financial Statemenits and are to be mead in relation 1o smoumnes and
other disclosures relaring to the current year.

PARTICULARS AS PER NBFC DIRECTION AMNEXED

As per our Repor of even date.
For §. B, DANDEEKER & CO, For and on bekalf of the Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS T
F.R.N: 301009E ol Y, ;
f o \ |

u. F&

\ i Ra AX Goenka
(KEDARASHISH T) i, g _.-r::/ r Whale Time Directar
FPARTNER WF Aol DN 00337332 DIN- (0312823
Membership No. 057903 - -
Ll Tl O buco S
Place : Kolkata Ajir P Walwaikar
Dred: 30ch May, 2003 Company Secretary

UDIN: 22,083 403BRAVE PO ELTS



